





THE 3DO COMPANY SHALL NOT BE LIABLE TO THE END USER FOR ANY LOSS OF DATA, LOST PROFITS, COST OF SUBSTITUTE GOODS OR OTHER CONSEQUENTIAL, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, PUNITIVE, OR OTHER DAMAGES OF ANY KIND ARISING OUT OF THE USE OF OR INABILITY TO USE THE SOFTWARE.

THE 3DO COMPANY MAKES NO WARRANTIES, EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY, REGARDING THE SOFTWARE, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE, OR ANY EQUIVALENT WARRANTIES UNDER THE LAWS OF ANY JURISDICTION.

DO NOT USE A FRONT OR REAR PROJECTION TELEVISION WITH THIS PRODUCT. YOUR PROJECTION TELEVISION SCREEN MAY BE PERMANENTLY DAMAGED IF STATIONARY SCENES OR PATTERNS ARE PLAYED ON YOUR PROJECTION TELEVISION. SIMILAR DAMAGE MAY OCCUR IF YOU PLACE THIS PRODUCT ON HOLD OR PAUSE. IF YOU USE YOUR PROJECTION TELEVISION WITH THIS PRODUCT, NEITHER THE 3DO COMPANY NOR GAMETEK(FL), INC. WILL. BE LIABLE FOR ANY RESULTING DAMAGE. THIS SITUATION IS NOT CAUSED BY A DEFECT IN THIS PRODUCT OR THE 3DO SYSTEM; OTHER FIXED OR REPETITIVE IMAGES MAY CAUSE SIMILAR DAMAGE TO A PROJECTION TELEVISION. PLEASE CONTACT YOUR TV MANUFACTURER FOR FURTHER INFORMATION.

THE EXECUTION OF SOFTWARE WITH THE 3DO SYSTEM INVOLVES THE USE OF PATENT RIGHTS, GRANTED OR APPLIED FOR, IN CERTAIN COUNTRIES. A PURCHASER OF THE 3DO SYSTEM IS LICENSED TO USE SUCH PATENT RIGHTS WITH SOFTWARE LICENSED BY THE 3DO COMPANY. NO LICENSE, IMPLIED OR OTHRWISE, IS GRANTED FOR THE EXECUTION OF OTHER SOFTWARE.

Game program copyright and manual copyright ©1994 Take 2 Interactive Software, Inc. All rights reserved

Take 2 Interactive Software 575 Broadway, 6th FI, New York, NY 10012 Hell: A Cyberpunk Thriller is a registered trademark of Take 2 Interactive Software, Inc.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Welcome	3
Technical Assistance	3
Entering Hell: A Cyberpunk Thriller	5
How to Play	7
Controller & Keys	7
Cursor Icons	8
Moving/Interacting	10
Characters	10
Objects	11
Locations	12
Game Options Menu	12
Choosing a Character	13
Recruiting Characters	13
Game Interfaces	13
Main Game Interface	13
Combat	18
Credits	
	R/Z/N

<u>WELCUME TO HELL</u>



... stay cool and enjoy the experience. Hell is designed to appeal to the hard core gamer and to the relative newcomer. We've tried to take the subject matter seriously—thus when salty language is appropriate, we don't shy away—but we've also

tried to keep our sense of humor about us, too. We've loaded this CD with art, story, programming, acting, music, and sound. We hope you enjoy it. Please let us know what you think. Write to us at 575 Broadway, 6th Floor, New York, NY 10012.

TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE

You can reach Take 2 by:

PHONE

For customer service and technical support, you can call Take 2 at (412) 539-6407 between 9:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. Eastern Standard Time.

FAX

You can reach Technical Support by fax at (412) 539-3195. On your fax please include your phone and fax number and as many details as possible about the problem you are having with the game.

MAIL

If you would like to contact us by mail, write to: Take 2 Interactive Software, Technical Support 1004 Ligonier St., Fl. 3, Latrobe, PA 15650

Please include your return address and as many details as possible about the problem you are having with the game.

For Game Play Strategies and Hints (Live & Recorded), Call: I-900-28-Take2

Ninety-five cents per minute for recorded hints; \$1.25 per minute for live hints. Must be 18 or have parents' permission. Touch tone phone required.

3

Ā

ENTERING HELL: A CYBERPUNK THRILLER WASHINGTON D.C., 2095

Hell occurs one hundred years in the future, and Washington D.C. is no longer just the nation's capital: it's also the place where hell meets earth. In the midnight hours, lurking amidst the bone-white monuments, hellspawn stalk the streets, looking for sinners to drag back to Hades.

The United States is ruled by a political party,

the Hand of God, and its leader, the Imperator Solene Solux. Swept to power by a populace overwhelmed by violence, the seeping control of new technologies, and rampant immorality, the androgynous Solux has lived up to his/her awesome campaign promise: To sit in judgment of sinners and condemn the offenders to Hell. Solux's substitute Bible—the Sententia—has practically replaced the constitution, and the government has become a repressive regime.

New computer technologies, the exploration of cyberspace, artificial intelligence, robotics, medical health enhancers (such as body-morphing surgery and birthing assistance units) and even developments in cyber-entertainment have all been outlawed.

Some of these decisions were rooted in popular demand. The interactive Acti-Deck virtual reality home entertainment system, for example, horrified the populace when it was discovered that the device had gradually altered the users' genetic codes and led to a strain of humans with frightening psionic capabilities.

But the Hand also outlawed free speech, books, rival political parties, alcohol and drugs, gambling, and a host of other freedoms. This crackdown on liberties has bred widespread discontent. Hiding in the back alleys and the speakeasies of this urban dystopia,

underground rebel cells have formed, including the Citizens' Freedom Front led by former U.S. Senator Erin Burr.

But opposition is fledgling since people live in constant fear of being condemned to hell's dark fires. The streets of D.C. are littered with the walking dead who've been there and back, and they can testify to the terrifying nature of the place—if they're able to talk at all, that is. Demons prowl the streets adding to the terror—monsters that resemble humans, horned beasts with pointed tails, and other creatures sprung from fallen angels.

GIDEON ESHANTI AND RACHEL BRAQUE

You play the game as either Gideon Eshanti or Rachel Braque. Regardless of which character you choose, both will appear together throughout the game. For Rachel Braque and Gideon Eshanti, the brutal truth

about the Hand of God comes in the form of a kicked-in door and singing bullets. Gideon and Rachel are field agents for Artificial Reality Containment (ARC), a division of the Hand's police apparatus. As ARC agents they were responsible for gathering information on illegal technologies. While they aren't armed police officers, they aren't exactly civil servants.

When the Hand of God betrays them, they begin their journey through the streets of Washington, a veering, bone-jarring scramble to learn why they've been targetted by the government they once served.

Your challenge is to learn why the Hand wants Gideon and Rachel dead. Can you solve the mystery before Gideon and Rachel feel the flames of hell?

HOW TO PLAY



CONTOLLER & KEYS

- 1 Left Shift Toggles through map locations (on D.C. map) or through objects in a room
- 2 Right Shift Accelerates the movement of the cursor
- Control Pad Move cursor or selection highlight; advance text
- 4 X Button Skip cinematics; end interactions
- 5 Pause N/A
- 6 A Button Pick-up and drop objects; give object; talk to character; make selection; advance text; access character inventory
- 7 B Button Room description; use object; character description; advance interaction
- 8 C Button Access main game interface; escape

CURSOR ICONS

Moving your cursor about the screen will reveal a good deal of information about possible actions at a given location. The cursor will change shape whenever it passes over objects or characters with which you can interact. The icon shapes and what they signify are listed below:



Pitchfork: The cursor will appear as a pitch fork in its default state. When the cursor is in this form, it can be used to move Gideon and Rachel across a map. Place the pitchfork where you desire Gideon and Rachel to move and press A.

Press A to move Gideon or Rachel
Press B for map description



Door icon: The cursor will appear as a door when the cursor is positioned over a link point to another location. Press A on the link point to walk Gideon or Rachel to it. If unlocked, the link point will connect you to another game location.



Talking head icon: The cursor will appear as a head when the cursor is placed over a nonplayer character or computer with which you can interact.

Press A to interact

Press B to obtain a description



Hand with palm down icon: The cursor will appear as a skeletal hand with its palm facing down when it is placed over an object icon.

Press A to pick up icon

Press B to obtain icon description



Inventory computer icon: The cursor will appear as a small computer icon when the cursor is placed over either Gideon or Rachel's characters. Pressing A on the character will grant you access to the player's inventories without leaving the game map.

Press A to access Rachel and Gideon's inventory

Press B for player description



Hand Using and Giving icon: The cursor will appear as the back of a skeletal hand whenever you hold an object as the cursor and move the cursor over a player or a nonplayer character.

Press A to attempt to give an object

Press B to attempt to use an object



Arrow pointer icon: The cursor will appear as an arrow when you are moving an object around with the cursor.

Press A to set icon down

Press B to use object on an area in the room



Finger pointing icon: The cursor will appear as a skeletal hand with its finger pointing whenever the cursor passes over artwork that can be manipulated as an object (see below for the two ways objects appear in the game).

Press A to pick up object if that object can be taken.

Press B to obtain description

Press B when holding object at the cursor to use that object on room art marked by the pointing finger.

MOVING/INTERACTING

CHARACTERS

Your party's movement is represented by Gideon's and Rachel's figures, both of which appear at all times regardless of which character you choose to be. To move Gideon and Rachel in the game, move the cursor to the desired location and Press A. The characters will move to that location.

A talking head illustration will appear at the cursor whenever it passes over a nonplayer character (NPC) or an object that can be manipulated in a special fashion. NPC interaction is initiated by pressing A whenever the head cursor appears.

When conversing with an NPC, the NPC and Gideon and Rachel are represented by animated close-up graphics. The options selection in the game interface tool bar allows you to play the game with speech only, speech and text, or text only (see Game Interface section).

Pressing the Stop key during an interaction will terminate the interaction. When you return to the character, interaction will begin where the previous interaction was interrupted.

Pressing B with the cursor positioned over a character will display that character's description.

During NPC interaction with both speech and text active, pressing A will scroll the text on screen until an entry of dialogue is completed. When an entry of dialogue is completed, pressing B will advance to the next entry. When playing with text only activated, pressing B will preempt the current dialogue entry and advance to the next dialogue entry. Pressing Stop will end the current interaction.

MULTI-RESPONSE MESSAGES

A significant feature of NPC interaction is the multi-response message option. Frequently during interaction with an NPC, you will be presented with a menu of topics you can discuss with the character. This feature is designed to give you more control over NPC interaction.

Press A on a topic to discuss it with the NPC. If you would rather not continue, Press C to exit the interaction. When you return to the character, you will again be presented with the multi-response message.

OBJECTS

Objects in *Hell* are represented in two ways. Objects that are first encountered as part of the game art will appear in scale with the rest of the art. That is, a chair will look like a chair. Once you elect to take that object, it will appear in your inventory as an object icon. Likewise, whenever it is returned to a game location, it will appear as an object icon. Any objects given to you by an NPC will appear solely as object icons.

Object Icons:

The palm down hand will appear at the cursor whenever it is passed over an icon that can be picked up. Pressing A on an object icon will allow you to pick up that object. Pressing A a second time with the object as the cursor will drop the object at the current game location. Pressing B on an object will produce a description of the object. Object descriptions often contain clues to an object's uses.

After Pressing A on an object, the object becomes the cursor. You can then Press A on the Gideon or Rachel figure or any NPC to insert that object into their inventory. If you wish to place the object into the inventory of another member of your party, you must deposit it directly into his or her inventory by accessing the inventory screen.

You can use an object on a character or on another object by holding

the object as the cursor and Pressing B on the character or object on which you choose to use the object.

You can give an object to a character by holding the object as the cursor and Pressing A over a character.

LOCATIONS

The cursor will take the shape of a door whenever it passes over a link point to another location. However, some doors in the game are locked. In these instances, the cursor will still appear as a door, but you will not be able to move through it until you unlock it. Pressing B when the cursor is not over a character or an object will produce a location description. These descriptions sometimes contain valuable clues to your course of action.

GAME OPTIONS MENU

After viewing the opening video, you will encounter *Hell's* options menu, which allows you to customize the game to your tastes, and to choose which of the two lead character roles you will assume. The options are as follows:

Music: Toggles music on and off

Sound: Toggles sound on and off

Restore Game: Allows you to restore a previously saved game

Start New Game: Allows you to begin a new game

CHOOSING A CHARACTER

Each time you begin a new game, you must select which character—Gideon or Rachel—you will be. Use the control pad to highlight the picture of Gideon Eshanti to the left of the screen or Rachel Braque to the right of the screen and press A to choose the character you wish to be. Don't worry, though—this choice won't break up the team. Whichever character you choose, the other will still accompany you on the journey through *Hell*.

When you restore a previous game, you will play with the same character you had originally used in that game.

RECRUITING CHARACTERS

You can recruit some NPCs to travel with Gideon and Rachel and assist in the adventure. Recruitable NPCs play limited, but strategically important roles in *Hell*. Each recruitable comes with a separate inventory and proprietary objects which they will take with them whenever they are dismissed from the party. When a character is dismissed, they will return to the location from which they were recruited and will be available to be recruited again. Recruitable characters do not follow you into hell. Gideon and Rachel are on their own in the dark depths.

GAME INTERFACES

MAIN GAME INTERFACE



To provide full-screen play, the game interface is displayed only when needed.

To access the game interface, move the cursor to the top of the screen or press C. A tool bar with seven icons will appear. Beneath the icons, a status bar showing the game date, number of days passed in the game, and Rachel and Gideon's amount of money will appear. The status bar updates automatically.

When selected, the seven icons have the following functions: Right or left moves selection highlight on the menu. Press A to pick the item.

TRAVEL VIA THE D.C. MAP

Travel in Washington D.C. is via the city's subway system. The subway system is represented by an image of the electronic subway map that Gideon and Rachel carry. Subway stops are indicated by red and white markers. Whenever locations at a stop become activated during the game, the stop indicator will flash when the cursor is placed over it. Move when the cursor is over one of the flashing circles, and the subway stop name will appear in the text box at the top of the interface. Use the left shift to toggle through the subway stops.

Press A on a stop to zoom-in on that location. From the zoom-in perspective the names of the locations accessible at that stop will appear in the text box at the top of the interface. Press A on the location you wish to travel to, and Gideon and Rachel will appear there. Additional locations will appear at each stop as you learn about them through interaction with characters.

Pressing C while zoomed-in will return to a zoomed-out view. Pressing C from the zoomed-out view will return to the game location or press A on the escape icon.

REPLAY

Pressing A on the replay icon pulls down a menu that allows you to replay the dialogue (text only) of any interaction you've been involved in up to that point. You can access your past interactions in one of three ways:



Time: This option lists the characters by the order in which you have spoken with them, with the most recent first. Select the dialogue by pressing A on the character name you desire.

ABC:. This option lists the characters you've spoken to, in alphabetical order. Press A on a name to replay that interaction.

Location: This option lists the locations you've visited and allows you to access characters according to where they appear in the game. Press B or C to escape out of the list and use the control pad to highlight the option you wish to use and press A to select. Press A on the done option to escape out of the replay function. Press A on a desired location name. A list of the NPCs you have interacted with at that location will appear. Click on the NPC whose interaction you wish to replay.

Once you've selected an interaction for replay, the text of the interaction appears next to the menu in a pop-up screen. To advance the text press B. Note that you can only replay that portion of the scene that you originally played. In other words, if you quit out of a scene before it has ended, the replay option only allows you to replay up to the point where the interaction ended.

To exit the replay function, press A on the done icon to close the menu box.

USE

When the cursor appears as an object (when you've selected an object by pressing A upon it within the game) pressing A on this icon brings up a menu of characters and items you can use that object upon.

GIVE

When the cursor appears as an object (when you've selected an object by pressing A upon it within the game), pressing A on this icon and a menu pops up telling you who you can give this object to.

EXAMINE

When the cursor appears as an object, pressing A on this icon summons up a description of the object you've chosen.

INVENTORY



Selecting this option displays the inventory page.

Objects gathered during the game are stored in the individual character's inventories. Gideon and Rachel share a joint inventory. It can be viewed by pressing A on either characters' likeness on the

inventory sheet. Recruitable characters have separate inventories, and these can be accessed by pressing A on the character's likeness.

Recruitable characters possess proprietary objects which they will take with them whenever they are dismissed from the party. To obtain an object descrip-

1

tion while on the inventory page, press A on an object, position it over the examine icon, and press A.

To drop an object, press A on the object, position it over the drop icon, and press A a second time. Another option is to return to the game screen by pressing C with the object still held as the cursor, and press A to drop the object.

Press C to escape from the inventory screen.

GAME

Pressing A on this icon brings up a menu of six options:

Save allows you to stop play and save the current game. Selecting this item from the menu produces a screen where you may save up to four games. The screen displays four thumbnail screens, depicting your location when each game was saved. The name of each saved game (as chosen by the player) appears next to the picture to the right. You may enter up to twenty characters. Press A to save a game into the storage slot.

Restore displays the same screen as the save option on this menu. The screen shows the room locations of the last scene of each game you've saved. Highlight a picture and the name of the saved games then press A on a picture to restore that particular saved game file.

New Game starts the game from the beginning.

Options allows you to customize the game as you play. You can toggle on or off the sound, music, speech, and text. Pause conversations to allow conversations to pause after the characters say their lines.

Credits will allow you to see the cast and production credits for Hell. You can also listen to the Hell credits song, "In the Depths (of Hell)" by The Heavy Skies.

Quit will end your current session of Hell.

COMBAT

Combat in *Hell* is, with the exception of your first encounter, puzzle driven. That is, your success in combat depends upon solving a puzzle. Combat consists of a series of lavishly animated self-running fights between Gideon, Rachel, and various demons. You must analyze the tactics of your opponent and the events of unsuccessful combat sequences, discover the means to defeat your foe, take some action prior to beginning combat, and then press

Like any other puzzle in the game, you will probably fail several times before you succeed, so be certain to save the game before entering combat. Be certain to carry any weapons you discover with you for use in combat. You'll find that you need them.

A on the character to begin the fight.



THE HELL TEAM	
GAME DESIGN:	The Automotive Committee
GAMIC DESIGNA.	Activities to the second secon
PRODUCER:	Laura Kampo John Antinori
EXECUTIVE PRODUCERS:	F.J. Lennon
ENLOCHEL PHOCOCLING.	Ryan Brant
	Mark Scremet
SCRIPT:	John Antinori
	Dennis Johnson
	Laura Kampo
PROGRAMMING:	Frank Kern
	Greg Brown
LEAD CASTING:	Ryan Brant
	Seth Bennett
SEMIOR ARTIST:	Quinno Martin
GAME LOCATIONS:	Quinno Martin, group leader
A STATE OF THE STA	Jack Snyder
	Mike Snyder
CHARACTERS:	Tom Howell, group leader
	Amy Finkbeiner
	Nancy Janda
	Rob Taylor
	Ed Medors
ANIMATED VIDEOS:	William Petras, group leader
	Kelly Vadas
	Anne Marie Arbutiski
	Jeffrey Styers
COMBAT ANIMATIONS AND EFFECTS:	Nancy Janda
	Amy Finkbeiner
	Tom Howell
	Henry Barrasso
	Kelly Kern
SPECIAL EFFECTS:	Anne Marie Arbutiski
	and Hell art team
CINEMATIC SCENE CONSTRUCTION:	Chuck Husa

VIDEO CAPTURING: Andrew Hollister John Grayson Kelly Kern **AUDIO PRODUCTION:** Sound Planet Michael Bross MUSIC SOUND EFFECTS: **VOICE TRACK EDITING SOUND EFFECTS:** Michael Goodis Tom Rigas **QUALITY ASSURANCE DIRECTOR: QUALITY ASSURANCE:** Steve Glasstetter Scott Shust Don Dillinger **GAMETEK QUALITY ASSURANCE:** Tony Puxes Robert Caraballo Ben Hendricks **COVER ILLUSTRATION:** Quinno Martin Anne Marie Arbutiski HELL LOGO: MANUAL: Dennis Johnson Tom Rigas John Antinori Frank Kern Greg Brown Juan Abad MANUAL LAYOUT AND DESIGN: Michael Glorieux **MARKETING AND PUBLICITY:** Kiera Reilly Lance Seymour PAX **GAMETEK PRODUCERS:** CREDITS SONG: "In the Depths (of Hell)" performed by The Heavy Skies. Michael Bross, vocals, keyboard, drum and synthesizer. Stephen Burkholder, guitar and backing vocals. Jeff Stringer, noise guitar track. Stacey Dillon, moans and sighs. Contact at Sound Planet 3746 E. Rural Court Pittsburgh, PA 15221. E-mail 72162,1076@ compuserve.com. SPECIAL THANKS TO: Peter Brant

THE HELL CAST

Dennis Hopper	Mr. Beautiful
Stephanie Seymour	Cynna Stone
Grace Jones	Solene Solux
Geoffrey Holder	Jean St. Mouchoir
Buster Maxwell	Gideon Eshanti
Natalie Baker	Rachel Braque
William Thunhurst	Sanguinarius, Hercule Rue des
	Couers, Arnie Ridge, Scub Stevens,
	Oscar Drexler, Walker Dash, Karl,
	Exiguus
Bill Daizell	Columbus Spatola, Secedine Marto,
	Alfred Czeschew, Delmonico
	Fehrlingetti
Jonas Cheny	Nick Cannon, Derek Literati, Chet,
	Cyberpanther, Admiral Pike
Charles Altman	Deepthroat, Townson Ellers,
	Professor Coronary
Audrey Castracane	Senator Erin Burr, Mr. Maledictum,
	Cora Bora
Streeter Nelson	Katarina Goertz, Christy Abraxis
Ken Roberts	Dean Sterling, Gack, Mephisto,
	Chamo
Gary Burton	Hump, Dingo Tucker, Blood
	McGrath, Languo, Guard eating ribs
Dan Kamin	Rutterkind, Charon, Tom Webster
Laura Gray	Suzy Toast, Chastity Bene
Amanda Cohen	Dr. Clean, Barbara Bacchus, Krystal
	Getty, Fecund 5088, Pentagon
	Receptionist, Anna Mae
Theresa Patrick	Sophia Bene, Grinda Dove,
	Temperence Lector, Carol Metz,
	Atroxias

Dante Scrivner, Splits Magnola **Paul Anderson** Phyllis Dancing-till-Daybreak, Kween **Tracy Turner** Chaos, Electric Sex Massimo Eddy, Charles Multi-Server, **David Hadinger** Milwaukee Jack, Stefan Benevolus, Mindrunner, Clap, Captain Jersey Larry O'Brien Malbolge, Ben Brewer, Wickersham Dodge, General Tantlinger Brett Carew, Deirdre, Vivid Winky O'Brien **Ken Vehec** Ged Dandy, Wicked Stick Cy Barnes, Pap Pap, Dispatcher **Jack Skelly** Dick Covett, Machalas, Batch **William Mann** Hachardo **Tony Bingham** Christopher Modesta, Manual Salinas, Carlos Portillo, Mick Gracie Lovell, Drew Onjenue, **Christine Blackburn** Prudence Alala Donna Alandro, Alice Trenton **Ruth Lesko** Zip Honey, Katlin Conner **Rose Wolford** 'Lissa Couerter **Melissa Witte** Jeremy Verdi, Drip Steve Glasstetter Thelma Bay Chesapeake, Cyber Laura Kampo Schmyber, Rita Troit, Dolph Van Ittey Mr. Calcutta, Leenon F.J. Lennon **Dennis Johnson** Aldous Xenon, Randal Singh Ms. Stinson Ann Marie Arbutiski Eddy Commerce, Voytek John Antinori Roach, Abonides **Michael Bross** Phrackie **Amy Finkbeiner** Jute, Carla Prince **Nancy Janda** General Mangini Greg Brown Open Soar John Grayson Thug, Solux's assistant

THE HELL 3DO TEAM

3DO VERSION Tetragon

PRODUCER Mark Skaggs

ENGINEERING Jay Stelly

ORIGINAL ARTWORK Mark Skaggs

ARTWORK ADAPTATION, Joey Bryant

TRANSLATION & CLEANUP Don Williams

PROJECT LIAISON Toey Bryant

QUALITY ASSURANCE Don Williams

Jay Stelly

Deré Newman

Jeff Shelton

LIMITED WARRANTY

Neither Take 2 Interactive Software, Inc., nor any dealer or distributor makes any warranty, express or implied, with respect to this manual, the disk, or any related item, their quality, performance, merchantability, or fitness for any purpose. It is the responsibility solely of the purchaser to determine the suitability of the products for any purposes. Some states do not allow limitations on implied warranty lasts, so the above limitation may not apply to you.

As a condition precedent to the warranty coverage provided below and to ensure identification, the original purchaser must complete and mail to Take 2 Interactive Software, Inc., 575 Broadway, 6th FL, New York, NY 10012, within 30 days after purchase, the Registration/Warranty card enclosed in this product. To the original purchaser only, Take 2 Interactive Software, Inc. warrants the media to be free from defects in materials for 90 days. If during the first 90days after purchase a defect in media should occur, the software may be returned to Take 2, who will replace the media at no charge. If at any time after the initial 90 day period the media becomes defective, the media may be returned to Take 2 for replacement at a reasonable service charge.

In no case will Take 2 be held liable for direct, indirect, or incidental damages resulting from any defect or omission in the manual, or other related items and processes, including, but not limited to any interruption of service, loss of business, anticipated profit, or any other consequential damages, so the above limitations or exclusions may not apply to you. This warranty gives you specific legal rights, and you may also have other rights which vary from state to state.

IMPORTANT: The above warranty does not apply if you make any unauthorized attempt to modify or duplicate the product, or if the product has been damaged by accident or abuse.

COPYRIGHT NOTICE

This manual and the computer programs and audiovisuals on the accompanying compact disk(s)/floppy disk, which are described by this manual, are copyrighted and contain proprietary information belonging to Take 2 Interactive Software, Inc. No one may give or sell copies of this manual or the accompanying disks or of listings of the programs on the disk to any person or institution, except as provided for by written agreement with Take 2 Interactive Software, Inc. No one may copy, photocopy, reproduce, or translate this manual or reduce it to machine readable form, in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of Take 2 Interactive Software, Inc. Any person/persons reproducing any portion of this program, in any media, for any reason, shall be guilty of Copyright violation, and shall be subject to civil liability at the discretion of Take 2 Interactive Software, Inc.